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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR tH(OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Quarter Ended November 25, 2012or
[ 1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 aR(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition period from to

Commission file number:0-27446

LANDEC CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 94-302561¢8
(State or other jurisdiction ¢ (IRS Employel
incorporation or organizatiot Identification Number

3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, California 94025
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(650) 306-1650

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant éf filed all reports required to be filed by Seetid or 15(d) of the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofdihdor such shorter period that the registrans weqquired to file such report
and (2) has been subject to such filing requiremfartat least the past 90 days.

Yes _X No____
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnitted electronically and posted on its corpok&ebsite, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted jauntsto Rule 405 of Regulation5-during the preceding 12 months (or for such &
period that the registrant was required to subndt@ost such files).

Yes_X No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axxelerated filer or a smal
reporting company. See definition of “large acratied filer” and “accelerated filer” and “smalleporting company” in Rule 12b-of
the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer X
Non Accelerated Filer Smaller Reporting Company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxge Act).
Yes No_ X

As of December 21, 2012, there were 25,783,934estafrCommon Stock outstanding.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

November 25, May 27,
2012 2012
(Unaudited) (1)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,85¢ 22,17,
Marketable securities 1,95¢ —
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfabants of $594 and $512 at November 25,

2012 and May 27, 2012, respectively 40,59¢ 31,95
Accounts receivable, related party 313 32¢
Income taxes receivable 21 47
Inventories, net 24,40: 22,01
Deferred taxes 2,07¢ 2,07¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,014 2,57¢

Total Current Assets 77,23¢ 81,16:
Investment in non-public company, non-fair value 793 798
Investment in non-public company, fair value 26,75: 21,50(
Property and equipment, net 63,44 63,49¢
Goodwill, net 49,62( 49,62(
Trademarks/tradenames, net 48,42¢ 48,42¢
Customer relationships, net 10,04¢ 10,557
Other assets 1,792 2,13¢
Total Assets $ 278,11. 277,69.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 25,94« 22,64+
Related party accounts payable 42F 77€
Accrued compensation 4,55¢ 5,78
Other accrued liabilities 4,51z 18,64
Deferred revenue 24¢€ 162
Lines of credit 7,50( 11,66¢
Current portion of long-term debt 7,03t 7,01z
Total Current Liabilities 50,22: 66,68¢
Long-term debt, less current portion 37,19: 40,30¢
Deferred taxes 21,07¢ 18,03:
Other non-current liabilities 1,86 1,10¢
Total Liabilities 110,35: 126,13
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shatt®azed; 25,783,934 and 25,644,580

shares issued and outstanding at November 25,&td RMay 27, 2012, respectively 26 26
Additional paid-in capital 122,98: 119,89
Retained earnings 43,10: 29,82:

Total Stockholders’ Equity 166,10¢ 149,74
Non controlling interest 1,652 1,81¢
Total Equity 167,76( 151,55¢
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 278,11: 277,69:

(1) Derived from audited financial statements.

See accompanying notes.






LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
November 28 November 27 November 28 November 27
2012 2011 2012 2011

Revenues:

Product sales $ 114,09: $ 80,76 $ 215,39 $ 153,08t

Services revenue, related party 563 80& 1,33¢ 1,78¢
Total revenues 114,65« 81,57( 216,72¢ 154,87
Cost of revenue:

Cost of product sales 95,70" 67,89 183,37: 129,16:

Cost of services revenue 48€ 66€ 1,13¢ 1,44¢
Total cost of revenue 96,19¢ 68,56( 184,50t 130,61:
Gross profit 18,45¢ 13,01( 32,22: 24,26(
Operating costs and expenses:

Research and development 2,11z 2,33i 4,31 4,67(

Selling, general and administrative 9,18¢ 6,46¢ 17,74: 12,50¢

Change in value of contingent consideration (3,939 — (3,939 —
Total operating costs and expenses 7,36¢€ 8,801 18,12¢ 17,17¢
Operating income 11,09: 4,20¢ 14,09¢ 7,082
Dividend income 281 281 563 563
Interest income 33 81 58 157
Interest expense (49¢) (163%) (1,039 (340
Other income 983 1,07¢ 5,241 1,08¢
Net income before taxe 11,89 5,48’ 18,91¢ 8,55(
Income tax expense (2,920 (2,049) (5,489 (3,159
Consolidated net income 8,97 3,43¢ 13,43t 5,391
Non controlling interes (59) (98) (15€) (239)
Net income applicable to Common Stockholc $ 8,91 $ 3,34C $ 13,27¢ $ 5,152
Basic net income per share $ 0.3t $ 0.1 $ 05z $ 0.2C
Diluted net income per share $ 034 $ 01: $ 05C $ 0.2C
Shares used in per share computation
Basic 25,74 25,88t 25,70¢ 26,147
Diluted 26,53¢ 26,13: 26,38’ 26,39¢
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Interest rate swap — 10¢€ — 52
Income tax expense — (40) — (20)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — 66 — 32
Comprehensive income attributable to Common Stddens $ 8,91 $ 3,40¢ $ 1327¢ $ 5,18¢

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Six Months Ende

November 25 November 27
2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income $ 13,43 $ 5,391
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,661 2,72¢
Stock-based compensation expense 671 88t
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense (1,819 (3,379
Increase in long-term receivable — (400)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 18C —
Deferred taxes 3,03¢ (463%)
Earn out liability (3,939 —
Change in investment in non-public company (fairkeavalue) (5,257) (1,179
Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (8,649 (7,407
Accounts receivable, related party 10 13¢
Income taxes receivable 1,84( 3,55¢
Inventories, net (2,39)) (14)
Issuance of notes and advances receivable — (1,586
Collection of notes and advances receivable — 24C
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (43€) 652
Accounts payable 3,30 2,14(
Related party accounts payable (35)) 32
Accrued compensation (1,229 304
Other accrued liabilities (61€) (84)
Deferred revenue 90¢ (2,307)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ 2,38¢ (742)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (3,280 (3,042
Purchase of marketable securities (2,459 (19,06€)
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities 50C 16,13¢
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities — 6,81¢
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (5,239 84¢€
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of outstanding common stock — (4,805
Proceeds from sale of common stock 651 91
Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and RSUs (49 (249)
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense 1,81« 3,37¢
Earn out payment from Lifecore acquisition (9,650 —
Payments on long-term debt (3,090 (2,330
Payments on lines of credit (4,16¢€) —
(Increase) decrease in other assets 344 (57)
Payments to minority interest holders (320 (257)
Net cash used in financing activiti (14,466 (4,009
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (17,32) (3,900
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 22,171 8,13t
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 485¢ $ 4,23
Supplemental schedule of noncash operating aeviti
Change in value of contingent consideration $ 393 $ —
Long-term receivable $ — 8 40C
Unrealized gain from interest rate swap $ — 3 32



See accompanying not
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentatiomd Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landecthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aibpolymer products for food
and agricultural products, medical devices andbeel partner applications that incorporate Landeafsnted polymer technologies. The
Company has two proprietary polymer technologyfptats: 1) Intelimer® polymers, and 2) hyaluron&dA”) biopolymers. The Company’s
HA biopolymers are proprietary in that they areciqily formulated for specific customers to meeicstregulatory requirements. The
Company'’s polymer technologies, along with its oo®r relationships and trade names, are the foiomdand a key differentiating advantage
upon which Landec has built its business. The Gomsells specialty packaged fresh-cut vegetaldswhole produce to retailers and club
stores, primarily in the United States, Asia and&zia, through its Apio, Inc. (“Apio”) subsidiary A-based biomaterials through its Lifecore
Biomedical, Inc. (“Lifecore”) subsidiary.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finantidéments of Landec have been prepared in accadeitit accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States for intdhmncial information and with the instructions feorm 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-
X. In the opinion of management, all adjustmentméisting of normal recurring accruals) have bmeade which are necessary to present fairly
the financial position at November 25, 2012 andréseilts of operations and cash flows for all pagipresented. Although Landec believes that
the disclosures in these financial statementsdeguate to make the information presented not edshg, certain information normally includ
in financial statements and related footnotes pegpen accordance with accounting principles gdheaacepted in the United States have been
condensed or omitted in accordance with the ruidsregulations of the Securities and Exchange Casion. The accompanying financial data
should be reviewed in conjunction with the audfiedncial statements and accompanying notes indlidéandec's Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2012.

The results of operations for the six months erdedember 25, 2012 are not necessarily indicativih@fresults that may be expected
for an entire fiscal year because there is somsosedity in Apio’s food business, particularly, Afs Food Export business and the order
patterns of Lifecore’s customers which may leadigmificant fluctuations in Landec’s quarterly riéswf operations.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presemtéde accrual basis of accounting in accordaritteWsS. generally accepted
accounting principles and include the accountsasfdec and its subsidiaries, Apio and Lifecore. mditerial inter-company transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidafiocevariable interest entities
(“VIES"). A company is required to consolidate tesets, liabilities and operations of a VIE iitlietermined to be the primary beneficiary of
the VIE.

An entity is a VIE and subject to consolidationhyf design: a) the total equity investment at isskot sufficient to permit the entity to
finance its activities without additional subordied financial support provided by any parties,tidahg equity holders or b) as a group the
holders of the equity investment at risk lack ang of the following three characteristics: (i) treewver, through voting rights or similar rights to
direct the activities of an entity that most sigrahtly impact the entity’s economic performandg tile obligation to absorb the expected losses
of the entity, or (iii) the right to receive thepected residual returns of the entity. The Compamiewed the consolidation guidance and
concluded that the non-public companies in whieh@ompany holds equity investments are not VIEs.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespglequires management to make
certain estimates and judgments that affect theuatsaeported in the financial statements and apaolying notes. The accounting estimates
that require management’s most significant andesuiivje judgments include revenue recognition; sadasns and allowances; recognition and
measurement of current and deferred income taxsaaed liabilities; the assessment of recoverghilitong-lived assets; the valuation of
intangible assets and inventory; the valuatiomeéstments; and the valuation and recognitionafksbased compensation.

These estimates involve the consideration of coxnfaletors and require management to make judgmérits.analysis of historical al
future trends can require extended periods of tomesolve and is subject to change from perigueriod. The actual results may differ from
management’s estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshithree months or less from date of purchase tomityaas cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist mainly of certificate of def@$CDs), money market funds and U.S. Treasurlége market value of cash equivalents
approximates their historical cost given their stterm nature.

Marketable Securities

Short-term marketable securities consist of CDsdhaFDIC insured and single A or better rated igipal bonds with original
maturities of more than three months at the dafmiothase regardless of the maturity date as tingp@noy views the funds within its portfolio as
available for use in its current operations. Tlenpany classifies all debt securities with readiéyermined market values as “available for
sale”. The aggregate amount of CDs included in marketsdxterities at November 25, 2012 and May 27, 2012%¢z6 million and zero,
respectively. The contractual maturities of therpany’s marketable securities that are due intlems one year represented $1.7 million and
zero of its marketable securities as of NovembeRp%2 and May 27, 2012, respectively. The cofiedenaturities of the Company’s
marketable securities that are due in one to tveosyeepresented $250,000 and zero of its markesablarities as of November 25, 2012 and
May 27, 2012, respectively. Investments in marletabcurities are carried at fair market value rddhized gains and losses are reported as a
component of stockholders’ equity. The cost oftdsdurities is adjusted for amortization of preméuand discounts to maturity. This
amortization is recorded to interest income. Redligains and losses on the sale of availableallersecurities are also recorded to interest
income and were not significant for the three ardreonths ended November 25, 2012 and Novembe2@I7l. During the three and six mor
ended November 25, 2012, the Company did not sglh@arketable securities. During the three andreinths ended November 27, 2011, the
Company sold $6.8 million of marketable securitifie cost of securities sold is based on the Bpédéntification method.

Financial Instruments

The Company'’s financial instruments are primardynposed of marketable securities, commercial-teadet payables, grower
advances, and notes receivable, as well as longfietes receivables and debt instruments. Fot-g&on instruments, the historical carrying
amount approximates the fair value of the instrum@ie fair value of long-term debt and lines @dit approximates their carrying value. Fair
values for long-term financial instruments not ligaharketable are estimated based upon discodntace cash flows at prevailing market
interest rates. Based on these assumptions, maeageelieves the fair market values of the Comijsdfityancial instruments are not materially
different from their recorded amounts as of Noven#tie 2012 or May 27, 2012.

Investments in Non-Public Companies
The Company’s investment in Aesthetic Sciences @atjpn (“Aesthetic Sciences”) is carried at cosd adjusted for impairment

losses. Since there is no readily available mariieie information, the Company periodically reviethis investment to determine if any other
than temporary declines in value have occurredchasehe financial stability and viability of Aestiic Sciences.
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On February 15, 2011, the Company made an investim&¥indset Holdings 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corpfora(“Windset”), which is
reported as an investment in non-public companyyédue, in the accompanying Consolidated Balg®loeets as of November 25, 2012 and
May 27, 2012. The Company has elected to accauritsfinvestment in Windset under the fair valpdian (see Note 4).

Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets are comprised sibouer relationships with a finite estimated uséfelof twelve to thirteen years
and trade names and goodwill with indefinite lives.

Finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed forgilale impairment whenever events or changes imgistances occur that indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset (or asset groug)magbe recoverable. Indefinite lived intangibksets are reviewed for impairment at least
annually by comparing the fair value of the assétst carrying value to determine if there has beeimpairment. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment at least annually by comparing the faiue of the related reporting unit to its carryirajue to determine if there has been an
impairment.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurement accouatiimancial assets and liabilities and for finetiéinstruments and certain other
items at fair value. The Company has electedahiesélue option for its investment in a non-puld@ampany (see Note 4). The Company has
not elected the fair value option for any of iteeteligible financial assets or liabilities.

The accounting guidance established a three-teatihy for fair value measurements, which pripesithe inputs used in measuring
fair value as follows:

Level 1- observable inputs such as quoted prices for idartistruments in active marke

Level 2— inputs other than quoted prices in active markes are observable either directly or indirectlgotigh corroboration wit
observable market dalt

Level 3— unobservable inputs in which there is little ormarket data, which would require the Company tcettgyits owr
assumptions

As of November 25, 2012, the Company held certsgets and liabilities that are required to be nreglat fair value on a recurring
basis, including cash equivalents, marketable g@sjrinterest rate swap and liability for contmg consideration in connection with the
acquisition of GreenLine and its minority intergstestment in Windset.

The fair value of the Company’s cash equivalentsraarketable securities is determined based omadide inputs that are readily
available in public markets or can be derived fioformation available in publicly quoted marketfiefefore, the Company has categorized its
cash equivalents and marketable securities as level

The fair value of the Company'’s interest rate sigagetermined based on model inputs that can beredd in a liquid market,
including yield curves, and is categorized as L&viglputs.

The fair value of the Company'’s liability for comgjent consideration is based on significant inpotsobserved in the market and thus

represents a Level 3 measurement. The Compangrdeésl the fair value of the liability for the camgent consideration as of May 27, 2012,
based on a probability-weighted discounted cash &palysis, as further discussed in Note 2 to thesGlidated Financial Statements.
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The Company has elected the fair value option cbating for its investment in Windset. The faifueaof the Company’s investment
in Windset utilizes significant unobservable inpimtshe discounted cash flow models, including gctgd cash flows, growth rates and discount
rates. As a result, the Company’s investment ind& t is considered to be a Level 3 measuremeestiment, as further discussed in Note
4. The change in the fair market value of the Camyfs investment in Windset for the three and sbnths ended November 25, 2012 was due
to the Company 20.1% minority interest in the change in the fia@irket value of Windset during those periods.ddtermining the fair value «
the investment in Windset, the Company utilizesfélewing significant unobservable inputs in thsabunted cash flow models:

At November 25, 201 At May 27, 2014
Revenue growth rates 3% to 10% 3% to 24%
Expense growth rates 3% to 8% 3% to 18%
Income tax rates 8% to 25% 25%
Discount rates 16% to 27% 16% to 27%

The revenue growth, expense gramihincome tax rate assumptions, consider the Coyrgpbest estimate of the trends in those
items over the discount period. The discount aggumption takes into account the risk-free rhtetarn, the market equity risk premium and
the Company’s specific risk premium and then agpdie additional discount for lack of liquidity dfet underlying securities. The discounted
cash flow valuation model used by the Company haddllowing sensitivity to changes in inputs asdwamptions (in thousands):

Impact on value «

Windset investme

as ofNovember 2t
2012

10% increase in revenue growth rates $ 1,00(
10% increase in expense growth rates $ (600
10% increase in income tax rates $ (100
10% increase in discount rates $ (250

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market inmain affect the amount of gain or loss recorded foarticular position. The use of
different methodologies or assumptions to deterrthieefair value of certain financial instrumentsikcbresult in a different estimate of fair value
at the reporting date.

The following table summarizes the fair value & @ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsatréair value on a recurring basis
as of November 25, 2012 and May 27, 2012 (in thodsg

Fair Value at November 25, 2012 Fair Value at May 27, 2012

Assets: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Marketable securities $ 1,95¢ $ - $ - $ - 8 - 8 =
Investment in private company - - 26,75: - - 21,50(

Total $ 1,95¢ $ - 8 26,75 $ - 8 - $ 21,50(
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - % 3,93t
Interest rate swap - 24¢ - = 347 =

Total $ -8 24t $ - $ - % 347 % 3,93:

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when the earninges is complete, as evidenced by an agreemdnthegitcustomer, transfer of

title, and acceptance, if applicable, as well asdipricing and probable collectibility. The Compgaecords pricing allowances, including
discounts based on arrangements with customershvgrecognized in revenue as a reduction to &otlbunts receivable and net revenue.
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When a sales arrangement contains multiple eleméms Company allocates revenue to each elememdbas a selling pric
hierarchy. The relative selling price for a detalgle is based on its vendor-specific objectivelence (VSOE), if available, thinplarty evidenc
(TPE), if VSOE is not available, or estimated sgjlprice if neither VSOE nor TPE is available. Te&mpany then recognizes revenue on
deliverable in accordance with its policies forguwot and service revenue recognition. The Compsioy typically able to determine VSOE
TPE, and therefore, uses estimated selling prizefidcate revenue between the elements of theageraent.

The Company limits the amount of revenue recognifiy delivered elements to the amount that iscootingent on the future delivery
of products or services or future performance @ibiigns or subject to customer-specific cancellatights. The Company evaluates each
deliverable in an arrangement to determine whettesr represent separate units of accounting. Aveleble constitutes a separate unit of
accounting when it has stand-alone value, andrf@reangement that includes a general right ofmetelative to the delivered products or
services, delivery or performance of the undeliglgyeoduct or service is considered probable asdlistantially controlled by the
Company. The Company considers a deliverablee ktand-alone value if the product or serviceld separately by the Company or another
vendor or could be resold by the customer. Furtherrevenue arrangements generally do not incdugieneral right of return relative to the
delivered products. Where the aforementionedraifer a separate unit of accounting are not thetdeliverable is combined with the
undelivered element(s) and treated as a singleofiaitcounting for the purposes of allocation & #8irangement consideration and revenue
recognition. The Company allocates the total @yeament consideration to each separable elememntafrangement based upon the relative
selling price of each element. Allocation of tlemsideration is determined at arrangement inceptiothe basis of each unit’s relative selling
price. In instances where the Company has nobléestad fair value for any undelivered elementeraye for all elements is deferred until
delivery of the final element is completed andredlognition criteria are met.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to peaipog financial statements to conform to the curpamiod presentation.
New Accounting Pronouncements
Intangible-Goodwill and Other

In September 2011, the FASB issued new guidandeviiallow an entity to first assess qualitatifiaetors to determine whether it is
necessary to perform the two-step quantitative gdbinpairment test. Under this amendment, antgmtould not be required to calculate the
fair value of a reporting unit unless the entityedmines, based on a qualitative assessment} ikahore likely than not that its fair value is$e
than its carrying amount. The amendment includaesnaber of events and circumstances for an emtigphsider in conducting the qualitative
assessment. The guidance is effective for fiseatybeginning after December 15, 2011 with eattpton permitted. The adoption of this
update did not have a material impact on the Coripansolidated financial statements.

Presentation of Comprehensive Incc

In December 2011, the FASB issued new guidancdrtimbves the comparability, consistency, and pansncy of financial reporting
and increases the prominence of items reportether comprehensive income by eliminating the optipresent components of other
comprehensive income as part of the statementasfgds in stockholders' equity. The amendmentddrstandard require that all non-owner
changes in stockholders' equity be presented dittgesingle continuous statement of compreherian@me or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Under either method, adjustments beudisplayed for items that are reclassified fraheocomprehensive income ("OCI") to net
income, in both net income and OCI. The standas$ahot change the current option for presentimgpoments of OCI gross or net of the eff
of income taxes, provided that such tax effectpaesented in the statement in which OCI is preskat disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. Additionally, the standard does rfecathe calculation or reporting of earnings gears. For public entities, the amendments ir
ASU are effective for fiscal years, and interimipds within those years, beginning after Decemi2011 and are to be applied
retrospectively, with early adoption permitted. eT@ompany adopted this standard beginning in figeat 2013.
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Fair Value Measuremet

In May 2011, the FASB issued new guidance effedtivennual reporting periods beginning after Delseni5, 2011. This guidance
amends certain accounting and disclosure requiresmelated to fair value measurements. Additialistlosure requirements in the update
include: (1) for Level 3 fair value measurementgmfitative information about unobservable inpusdy) a description of the valuation proce
used by the entity, and a qualitative discussiamuathe sensitivity of the measurements to chairgee unobservable inputs; (2) for an entity’s
use of a nonfinancial asset that is different ftbmasset’s highest and best use, the reasongfdifference; (3) for financial instruments not
measured at fair value but for which disclosuréaafvalue is required, the fair value hierarchyeein which the fair value measurements were
determined; and (4) the disclosure of all translietsveen Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value ériehy. The Company adopted this standard
beginning in fiscal year 2013.

Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabili

In November 2011, the FASB issued new guidance®ffefor annual reporting periods beginning Japudar2013. This guidance
amends the disclosure requirements around offgdtiienable users of the financial statements diexgtand the effect of those arrangements on
its financial position. Entities are requireddisclose both gross and net information aboutrikiiments and transactions eligible for offset in
the statement of financial position and instrumemts transactions subject to an agreement sinsilambaster netting arrangement. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this startdehave a material impact on its consolidatadricial statements.

2. Acquisitions
GreenLine Holding Company

On April 23, 2012 (the “GreenLine Acquisition DateApio acquired all of the outstanding equity ak@nLine Holding Company
(“GreenLine”) pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agredrttbe “GreenLine Purchase Agreement”) in ordegxtpand its product offerings and enter
into new markets such as foodservice. GreenLieadfuartered in Bowling Green, Ohio, was a priyateld company and is the leading
processor and marketer of value-added, fresh-egtrgbeans in North America. GreenLine has foucgssing plants one each in Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Florida and California and distribatcenters in New York and South Carolina.

Under the GreenLine Purchase Agreement, the aggregasideration paid at closing consisted of $&&IBon in cash, including
$4.7 million that is held in an escrow accountdowse Landec’s indemnification rights with respectertain matters, including breaches of
representations, warranties and covenants. Iriadgdihe GreenLine Purchase Agreement includeatenpial earn out payment up to $7.0
million in the event that GreenLine achieves certaivenue targets during calendar year 2012. &he@ut was comprised of $4.0 million for
achieving a certain revenue target during calepdar 2012, and up to an additional $3.0 milliondgceeding the revenue target by $3.0 mil
or more. During fiscal year 2012, the Companyqrened an analysis of projected revenues for Greenand concluded at that time that there
was a reasonable probability that GreenLine wowétrbut not exceed, the initial revenue targetthackfore, the Company recorded a $3.9
million liability as of May 27, 2012, representitite present value of the fair market value of thgeeted earn out payment. As a result of the
severe drought in the Midwest during 2012, lowantkexpected results from new product launches eandpfanned business not being realized,
during the second quarter the Company determiregdttts no longer probable that GreenLine will izefe the earn out revenue target and,
therefore, the Company has reversed the $3.9 miiédility recorded for the earn out and has rdedra corresponding credit to the “Change in
value of contingent consideration” in its Consal@hCondensed Statements of Income for the thrésiamonths ended November 25, 2012.

The acquisition date fair value of the total corsidion transferred was $66.8 million, which coteisof the following (in thousands):

Cash $ 62,90(
Contingent consideration 3,93:
Total $ 66,83
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The assets and liabilities of GreenLine were reetrat their respective estimated fair values abeflate of the acquisition using
generally accepted accounting principles for bissr@mbinations. The excess of the purchase pvietioe fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired has been allocated to goodwilld@ilaepresents a substantial portion of the asitjon proceeds because of the workforce in-
place at acquisition and because of GreenLine'g hastory and future prospects. Management bedi¢at there is further growth potential by
extending GreenLine’s product lines into new chésreich as club stores.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of GreenLine’s assets acquired and lialslgigsumed and related deferred
income taxes, effective April 23, 2012, the date @ompany obtained control of GreenLine (in thodsgn

Accounts receivable, net $ 7,05
Inventories, net 1,40¢
Property and equipment 11,66¢
Other tangible assets 30¢€
Intangible assets 43,50(
Total identifiable assets acquired 63,94
Accounts payable and other liabilities (8,39))
Deferred taxes (1,879
Total liabilities assumed (10,266
Net identifiable assets acquired 53,67¢
Goodwill 13,15¢
Net assets acquired $ 66,83

The Company used a combination of the market aatlafgproaches to estimate the fair values of tee@iine assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. During the measurement pefddch is not to exceed one year from the acdaisidate), the Company is required to
retrospectively adjust the provisional assetsabilities if new information is obtained about faeind circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have regliitethe recognition of those assets or liabiliagof that date. No adjustments were made to
the fair values of GreenLine assets acquired bililies assumed during the six months ended Nowerb, 2012. The Company has finalized
the fair values of the acquired assets and assliai#lities and has completed the purchase priceation as of November 25, 2012.

Intangible Asset

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets was determined using a discountedfloasimodel, under an income
valuation methodology, based on management’s feaa-projections of revenues, gross profits andaiey profits by fiscal year and assumes a
40% effective tax rate for each year. Managenad@d into account the historical trends of Greealaind the industry categories in which
GreenLine operates along with inflationary factetgrent economic conditions, new product introgund, cost of sales, operating expenses,
capital requirements and other relevant data wieeeldping its projection. The Company believes tha level and timing of projected cash
flows appropriately reflect market participant asptions. The projected cash flows from these intdag were based on key assumptions such
as estimates of revenues and operating profittetkta the intangibles over their respective fosepariods. The resultant cash flows were then
discounted using a rate the Company believes ipppte given the inherent risks associated waithentangible asset and reflect market
participant assumptions.

The Company identified two intangible assets inngmtion with the GreenLine acquisition: trade naames trademarks valued at $36.0
million, which is considered to be an indefinitie lasset and therefore, will not be amortized; @rstomer base valued at $7.5 million with a
thirteen year useful life. The trade name/tradenradngible asset was valued using the relief frogalty valuation method and the customer
relationship intangible asset was valued usingltsiibutor method.
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Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred owefdin values assigned to the assets acquiredaitities assumed was $13.2 million
on the closing date, which represents the goodwilbunt resulting from the acquisition which caratiebutable to GreenLine’s long history,
future prospects and the expected operating syggefigim combining GreenLine with Apio’s fresh-cusjueadded vegetable business. Non
the goodwill is expected to be deductible for ineataix purposes. The Company will test goodwillifopairment on an annual basis or sooner,
if indicators of impairment are present.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

The $1.9 million of net deferred tax liabilitiestating from the acquisition was primarily relatecthe difference between the book
basis and tax basis of the intangible assets anubeeating losses that were assumed by the Comipahg acquisition.

Lifecore Biomedical, I nc.

On April 30, 2010, the Company acquired all of teenmon stock of Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“Life@dy pursuant to a Stock
Purchase Agreement (“Lifecore Purchase Agreeméntiyder to expand its product offerings and eimtter new markets. Lifecore was a
privately-held hyaluronan-based biomaterials corggacated in Chaska, Minnesota. Lifecore is ppiadly involved in the development and
manufacture of products utilizing hyaluronan, aunaity occurring polysaccharide that is widely disfited in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and humans.

Under the Lifecore Purchase Agreement, the Compaid/to the former Lifecore stockholder at clos#d®.0 million in cash, which
included $6.6 million held in an escrow accountlftéf the escrow or $3.3 million was released paidl to the former Lifecore shareholder in
May 2011. The other half was released and pailedormer Lifecore shareholder in May 2012. Iditidn to the cash consideration paid to
former shareholder of Lifecore, the Lifecore PusghAgreement included an earn out payment of @m dditional $10.0 million based on
Lifecore achieving certain revenue targets in adderyears 2011 and 2012. These revenue targetsasbieved in calendar year 2011 and the
$10.0 million earn out payment was paid by the Camypto the former shareholder of Lifecore on May 2®12.

3. Sale of Landec Ag

On June 24, 2012, Landec entered into a stock peecagreement and two licensing agreements (seed)Nutith INCOTEC® Coating
and Seed Technology Companies (“INCOTEC”), a leggirovider of seed and coating technology prodatsservices to the seed industry.

In the stock purchase agreement, Landec sold iitygigterest in its seed subsidiary, Landec Ag L.t&CINCOTEC for $600,000,
which resulted in a gain of $400,000. Under actiogrguidance, because the stock purchase agreevasréntered into at the same time the
license agreements were consummated (a multipheegieagreement), a portion of the gain, or $300,888 been deferred and will be
recognized as revenue monthly from the sale datethe seven year life of the Pollinator Plus®nise agreement (see Note 5). The remaining
$100,000 of the gain was recognized during thé¢ djiusirter of fiscal year 2013.

4. Investments in non-public companies

In December 2005, Landec entered into a licensimgeament with Aesthetic Sciences for the excluggfets to use Landec's Intelimer
O materials technology for the development of derifiats worldwide under the agreement. The Compaatgived shares of preferred stocl
exchange for the license with a valuation of $1lilian. Aesthetic Sciences sold the rights to iteetfil™ Injector System on July 16,
2010. Landec has evaluated its investment in AgistiSciences for impairment, utilizing a discouhtash flow analysis under the terms of the
purchase agreement. Based on the terms of thelsal€ompany determined that its investment wasrdahan temporarily impaired and
therefore, recorded an impairment charge of $1lBomias of May 30, 2010. The Company'’s carryirsdue of its investment in Aesthetic
Sciences is $793,000 as of November 25, 2012 anyd2Vla2012. No additional impairment has beenrdateed for the Company’s investment
in Aesthetic Sciences.
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On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharetiase agreement (the “Windset Purchase Agreemeitki’)Windset. Pursuant to the
Windset Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased 15G80i@r preferred shares for $15 million and 201 rmom shares for $201 that were issued
by Windset (the “Purchased Shares”). The Compargrismon shares represent a 20.1% interest in Wind$e non-voting senior
preferred shares yield a cash dividend of 7.5% alhynuThe dividend is payable within 90 days ofteanniversary of the execution of the
Windset Purchase Agreement and the first dividexyadent of $1.1 million was made in May 2012. Thentiéet Purchase Agreement includ:
put and call option, which can be exercised orsthiln anniversary of the Windset Purchase Agreemvbetreby Apio can exercise the put to
its Purchased Shares to Windset, or Windset camiegehe call to purchase the Purchased ShanesAmio, in either case, at a price equal to
20.1% of the appreciation in the fair market vadfi®Vindset from the date of the Company’s investntlerough the put and call date, plus the
purchase price of the Purchased Shardader the terms of the arrangement with Windset@bmpany is entitled to designate one of five
members on the Board of Directors of Windset.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the investrim Windset does not qualify for equity methedaunting as the investment d
not meet the criteria of in-substance common sthekto returns through the annual dividend onridrevoting senior preferred shares that are
not available to the common stock holders. Agpilteand call options require the Purchased Shares put or called in equal proportions, the
Company has deemed that the investment, in sulestahould be treated as a single security for mapof accounting. The Company has
adopted fair value option in the accounting foiiritgestment in Windset effective on the acquisititate. The fair value of the Company’s
investment in Windset utilizes significant unobsdte inputs in the discounted cash flow modelduating projected cash flows, growth rates
and discount rates (see Note 1) and is thereforsidered a Level 3 for fair value measurement mepo The Company believes that reporting
its investment at fair value provides its investoith useful information on the performance of @@mpany’s investment and the anticipated
appreciation in value as Windset expands its basine

The fair value of the Company’s investment in Wigtdsas determined utilizing a discounted cash fiosdel based on projections
developed by Windset, and considers the put andaaversion options. These features impact thatahin of the cash flow utilized to derive
the estimated fair value of the investment. Assionp included in the discounted cash flow modéll wé evaluated quarterly based on
Windset’s actual and projected operating resultsetermine the change in fair value.

During the three and six months ended Novembe2@52 and November 27, 2011, the Company recordétl, 20 and $563,000,
respectively, in dividend income. The change anftir market value of the Company’s investmendfimdset for the three months ended
November 25, 2012 and November 27, 2011 was $1li@mand $1.1 million, respectively, and is incedlin other income in the Consolida
Statements of Income. The change in the fair ntarkdee of the Compang’investment in Windset for the six months endeddxter 25, 201
and November 27, 2011 was $5.3 million and $1.%anil respectively, and is included in other incoimé¢he Consolidated Statements of
Income.

The Company also entered into an exclusive licagseement with Windset, which was executed in 204®, prior to contemplation
of Apio’s investment in Windset (see Note 5).

5. Collaborative Agreements

Monsanto

On December 1, 2006, Landec entered into a five-g@a&xclusive technology license and polymer sypgreement (“the Monsanto
Agreement”) with Monsanto Company (“Monsanto”) the use of Landec’s Intellicogbolymer seed coating technology. On December 1,
2011, Monsanto terminated the Monsanto Agreemeathpard the Company a $4 million termination fee ahdights to the Intellicoatseed

coating technology reverted to Landec.

For the three and six months ended November 27.,,2Gihdec recognized $1.35 million and $2.7 milliespectively, in license
revenues from the Monsanto Agreement.

-14-




INCOTEC

In connection with the sale of Landec Ag to INCOT&€CJune 24, 2012 (see Note 3), Landec enterecistven-year exclusive
technology license and polymer supply agreemeitit INCOTEC for the use of Landec’s Intellicégpolymer seed coating technology for male
inbred corn which is sold under the Pollinator Ralsel. This license does not include the usent&llicoat for the controlled release of an active
ingredient for agricultural applications which watained by Landec. Landec will be the exclusivepdier of Pollinator Plus polymer to
INCOTEC during the term of the license agreemésmindec will receive a royalty equal to 20% of tegenues realized by INCOTEC from the
sale of or sublicense of Pollinator Plus coatingsnd the first four years of the agreement and f6@the last three years of the agreement.

On June 24, 2012, Landec also entered into a fa-gxclusive technology license and polymer supghgement with INCOTEC for
the joint development of new polymer and uniquetioga for use in seed treatment formulations.hla &greement, Landec will receive a value
share which will be mutually agreed to by both igarprior to each application being developed.

Air Products

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusiveniée and research and development agreement wiBr@ducts and Chemicals, It
(“Air Products”). In accordance with the agreemésmindec receives 40% of the direct profit generétem the sale of products by Air Products
occurring after April 1, 2007, that incorporate Han's Intelimer materials.

Chiquita

In September 2007, the Company amended its licgresid supply agreement with Chiquita Brands Intéwnal, Inc.
(“Chiquita™). Under the terms of the amendmehé license for bananas was expanded to includéi@ataliexclusive fields using Landec’s
BreatheWay® packaging technology, and a new exaugiense was added for the sale and marketimg@fados and mangos using Landec’s
BreatheWay packaging technology. The agreemeht@liiquita has been renewed through December 284 6eguires Chiquita to pay annual
gross profit minimums to Landec in order for Chiguio maintain its exclusive license for bananascados and mangos. Under the terms ¢
agreement, Chiquita must notify Landec before Ddxmistof each year whether it is going to maintain itslesive license for the following
calendar year and thus agree to pay the minimuntbhdbyear. Landec was notified in November 202 Chiquita has chosen to not maintain
its exclusive license for calendar year 2013 ang thill not be required to pay the minimum grossfipfor calendar year 2013. As a result, the
agreement has reverted to a non-exclusive agreemeshich Chiquita will pay the Company for membearpurchased on a per unit sales basis
and the Company is now entitled to sell its Bredthg packaging technology for bananas, avocadosremdjos to others.

Windset

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieesgreement with Windset for Windset to utilize tlea's proprietary breathable
packaging to extend the shelf life of greenhousevgrcucumbers, peppers and tomatoes (“ExclusivduRte”). In accordance with the
agreement, Apio received and recorded a one-tirfrentresearch and development fee of $100,000ndlhdeceive license fees equal to 3% of
net revenue of the Exclusive Products utilizing pheprietary breathable packaging technology, witkvithout the BreatheWay® trademark.
The ongoing license fees are subject to annualhmimis of $150,000 for each of the three types oluske product as each is added to the
agreement. As of November 25, 2012, two produat® tbeen added to the agreement.

Nitta

In July 2012, the Company entered into a researdrdavelopment agreement with Nitta Corporatiodaganese company, to develop
additional uses of the Company’s adhesive polymghrtology for electronics. For the three and sixtns ended November 25, 2012, the
Company recognized $103,000 and $138,000, respéctin research and development revenues fromagrnsement. The agreement was
amended in November 2012, to extend and expansttipe of the work under the agreement for anotkenanths. The Company expects to
recognize an additional $550,000 in research amdldement revenue under the amended agreemengdhgrsecond half of fiscal year 2013.
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6. Stock-Based Compensation

In the three and six months ended November 25,,26@2Zompany recognized stock-based compensatmanse of $323,000 and
$671,000, respectively, which included $141,000 $2@8,000 for restricted stock unit awards and $1@B2and $373,000 for stock option
grants, respectively. In the three and six moatided November 27, 2011, the Company recognize#l-simsed compensation expense of
$444,000 and $885,000, respectively, which inclubE@i3,000 and $395,000 for restricted stock undrae and $251,000 and $490,000 for
stock option grants, respectively.

The following table summarizes the stock-based @rsation by income statement line item:

Three Months Three Months Six Months Six Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
November 25, November 27, November 25, November 27,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Research and development $ 104,00 $ 130,00 $ 214,000 $ 254,00(
Sales, general and administrative $ 219,00 $ 314,000 $ 457,000 $ 631,00(
Total stock-based compensation $ 323,000 $ 444,000 $ 671,000 $ 885,00

As of November 25, 2012, there was $1.2 millioniodél unrecognized compensation expense relatadvested equity compensation
awards granted under the Landec equity plans.| €gfense is expected to be recognized over thghierlaverage period of 1.6 years for st
options and 1.4 years for restricted stock unitrdaa
7. Diluted Net Income Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation dfitd net income per share (in thousands, exoepsipare amounts):

Three Months Three Months Six Months Six Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
November 25, November 27, November 25, November 27,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Numerator;
Net income applicable to Common Stockholc $ 891: $ 3,34C % 13,27¢ % 5,152
Denominator:
Weighted average shares for basic net income pee st 25,74 25,88t 25,70¢ 26,14
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock units 792 25( 67¢ 252
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipaire 26,53¢ 26,13t 26,38" 26,39¢
Diluted net income per share $ 034 % 01: $ 05C $ 0.2C

For the three months ended November 25, 2012 arndrioer 27, 2011, the computation of the dilutedimeime per share excludes
the impact of options to purchase 85,857 share2dnnhillion shares of Common Stock, respectiva/such impacts would be antidilutive for
these periods.

For the six months ended November 25, 2012 and idbee27, 2011, the computation of the diluted nebme per share excludes the

impact of options to purchase 84,429 shares anthiflitn shares of Common Stock, respectively,ashampacts would be antidilutive for
these periods.
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8. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three anchsdnths ended November 25, 2012 was $2.9 milliah%b.5 million,
respectively. The effective tax rate for the sianths ended November 25, 2012 was 29% compareftof@ the same periods in fiscal year
2012. The effective tax rate for the six monthseshovember 25, 2012 differs from the statutoryefatincome tax rate of 35% as a result of
several factors, including state taxes, domesticufeecturing deduction, non-deductible stock-basedpensation expense, the benefit of state
research and development credits and post acquisitjustments related to the GreenLine acquisition

As of May 27, 2012, the Company had unrecognizedémefits of approximately $766,000. Includedhie balance of unrecognized
tax benefits as of May 27, 2012 is approximatel93800 of tax benefits that, if recognized, wowdduit in an adjustment to the Company’s

effective tax rate. The Company expects its unreizegl tax benefits to change by $8,000 within tlet twelve months related to the expiration
of tax attributes.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the Compasydecided to classify interest and penaltiegaelto uncertain tax positions
as a component of its provision for income taxglse Company has accrued an insignificant amoumttefest and penalties relating to the
income tax on the unrecognized tax benefits asovelber 25, 2012 and May 27, 2012.

Due to tax attribute carry forwards, the Comparsuilsject to examination for tax years 1996 and fateU.S. tax purposes. The
Company was also subject to examination in vargate jurisdictions for tax years 1998 and latenenof which were individually significant.

9. Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finstirst-out method) or market and consisted effilllowing (in thousands):

November 2& May 27,

2012 2012
Finished goods $ 11,17 $ 9,40¢
Raw materials 9,65 9,87¢
Work in progress 3,57 2,72¢
Total $ 24,40: $ 22,01:
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10. Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):
November 25,
2012 May 27, 2012

Real estate loan agreement with General Electnpit@laCorporation (“GE Capital”); due

in monthly principal and interest payments of $088, through May 1, 2022 with

interest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per annum $ 17,51 $ 17,95°
Real estate bridge loan agreement with GE Capited;in monthly principal and interest

payments of $8,902 with a lump sum final principayment due on May 1, 2013

with interest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% peuan 1,171 1,20(
Capital equipment loan with GE Capital; due in nmnprincipal and interest payments

of $175,356 through May 1, 2019 with interest basea fixed rate of 4.39% per

annum 11,88: 12,66(
Term note with BMO Harris; due in monthly paymeot$250,000 through May 23,
2016 with interest payable monthly at LIBOR plus gé& annum 10,50( 12,00(

Industrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) issued by Lifegodue in annual payments through
2020 with interest at a variable rate set weeklyheybond remarketing agent (0.40%

and 0.42% at November 25, 2012 and May 27, 205pectively) 3,16( 3,50(
Total 44,22' 47,31%
Less current portion (7,03%) (7,012)
Long-term portion $ 37,19: $ 40,30¢

In addition to entering into the GE Capital reahés and equipment loans mentioned above, on 282012 in connection with the
acquisition of GreenLine, Apio also entered infiva-year, $25.0 million asset-based working cdp#&olving line of credit with GE Capital,
with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2%, with montlalvailability based on the combination of the ilig accounts receivable and eligible
inventory. Apio’s revolving line of credit has anused fee of 0.375% per annum. At November 262 2hd May 27, 2012, Apio had $7.5
million and $11.7 million, respectively, outstangliander its revolving line of credit.

Apio’s obligations under the GE Capital real estatpiipment and line of credit agreements (coletyithe “GE Debt Agreements”)
are secured by liens on all of the property of Agial its subsidiaries. The GE Debt Agreementsadoicistomary events of default under wi
obligations could be accelerated or increased. Ql&apital real estate and equipment loans anagteed by Landec and Landec has pledged
its equity interest in Apio as collateral under line of credit agreement. The GE Debt Agreemeatgain customary covenants, such as
limitations on the ability to (1) incur indebtedses grant liens or negative pledges on Api@ésets; (2) make loans or other investmentgialf
dividends, sell stock or repurchase stock or agleeurities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in mer¢@ygnter into sale and leaseback transactions;
and (7) make changes in Apio’s corporate structimeaddition, Apio must maintain a minimum fixeldacge coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0. Apio
was in compliance with all financial covenants &Blovember 25, 2012. Unamortized loan originafiees for the GE Debt Agreements were
$1.1 million and $1.3 million at November 25, 2l May 27, 2012, respectively, and are includeattier assets in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finalgcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or ffdiates (“BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Cre&lireement”) which includes (a) a one-year, $8.0ioni asset-based working capital
revolving line of credit, with an interest rateldBOR plus 1.85%, with availability based on therdmnation of Lifecore’s eligible
accounts receivable and inventory balances (avitjalvas $7.3 million at November 25, 2012) andiwno unused fee (at November
25, 2012 and May 27, 2012, no amounts were outstgnohder the line of credit) and (b) a $12.0 roilliterm loan which matures in
four years due in monthly payments of $250,000 witbrest payable monthly based on a variableéstarate of LIBOR plus 2% (the
“Term Loan”).
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2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to wBIRtO Harris caused its affiliate, Bank of Montretal issue an irrevocable letter of
credit in the amount of $3.5 million (the “Lettefr @redit”) which is securing the IRBs describeddvel

Lifecore’s obligations under the Lifecore Loan Agmeents are secured by liens on all of the proprhjfecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such ésatioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesg@nt liens or negative pledges on
Lifecore’s assets; (2) make loans or other investm€3) pay dividends or repurchase stock or atkeurities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in
mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaseback transag(7) adopt certain benefit plans; and (8) matk@nges in Lifecore’s corporate structure. In
addition, under the Credit Agreement, Lifecore nmaintain (a) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratit.10 to 1.0 and a minimum quick
ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which must be s&itfas of the end of each fiscal quarter and ¢n)rémum tangible net worth of $29,000,000,
measured as of May 26, 2013, and as of the endabf fiscal year thereafter. Lifecore was in coanpte with all financial covenants as of
November 25, 2012. Unamortized loan originaticesféor the Lifecore Loan Agreements were $174,0@D$4 39,000 as of November 25, 2(
and May 27, 2012, respectively, and are includesthier assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formedi¢ facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wellsargo”). The Letter of Credit
(which replaces a letter of credit previously pdad by Wells Fargo) provides liquidity and credipport for the IRBs.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued IRBs. ThedgslRere assumed by Landec in the acquisition &fddfe. The IRBs are
collateralized by a bank letter of credit whictséured by a first mortgage on the Company'’s fgditi Chaska, Minnesota. In addition, the
Company pays armannual remarketing fee equal to 0.125% and an atetter of credit fee of 0.75%. The maturitiestbe IRBs are held in a
sinking fund account, recorded in Other CurrenteAsi the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheadsare paid out each year on
September .

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaterest rate swap agreement which expires on BQriR015, under its prior credit
agreement with Wells Fargo. The interest rate swapdesignated as a cash flow hedge of futureeisitpayments of LIBOR and had a notic
amount of $20 million. As a result of the intereste swap transaction, the Company fixed for aear period the interest rate at 4.24% subject
to market based interest rate risk on $20 millibbarowings under the prior credit agreement Witklls Fargo. The Company’s obligations
under the interest rate swap transaction as tedheduled payments were guaranteed and securbd sarhe basis as its obligations under the
credit agreement with Wells Fargo at the time tre@ment was consummated. As mentioned in Nqtaddh entering into the new Term
Loan with BMO Harris, the Company used the procdeata that loan to pay off the Wells Fargo creditifity. The swap with Wells Fargo was
not terminated upon the extinguishment of the detht Wells Fargo. As a result of extinguishing thebt with Wells Fargo as of May 23, 2012,
the swap was no longer an effective hedge andftirerahe fair value of the swap at the time thietadeas extinguished of $347,000 was reve
from other comprehensive income and recorded iaratkpense during fiscal year 2012. The fair valune swap arrangement as of Noven
25, 2012 and May 27, 2012 was $248,000 and $34/r86pectively, and is included in other non-curtiatilities in the accompanying balance
sheet. The change in the fair value of the swegb@f000 and $99,000 for the three and six momnided November 25, 2012 is recorded in
other income in the accompanying income statement.

12. Related Party

The Company provides cooling and distribution se¥gito both a farm and Beachside Produce LLC (‘iB®de"), a commodity
produce distributor, in which the Chairman of Apias a farming and ownership interest, respectivéuring the three months ended
November 25, 2012 and November 27, 2011, the Coynpenognized revenues of $694,000 and $933,000ectsely, which have bee
included in product sales and in service revenudisé accompanying Consolidated Statements of Iecénom the sale of products and
providing cooling services to these parties. Dgitime six months ended November 25, 2012 and Noge&h 2011, the Company recognized
revenues of $1.7 million and $2.0 million, respesly, which have been included in product salesiarggrvice revenues in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Income, from the sapgaducts and providing cooling services to themtigs. The related receivable balances of
$313,000 and $323,000 are included in accountsvadde in the accompanying Consolidated BalanceeBhes of November 25, 2012 and May
27, 2012, respectively.
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Additionally, unrelated to the revenue transactiabsve, the Company purchases produce from Beaglasifdrm in which the
Chairman of Apio has an ownership interest, anddaén for sale to third parties. During the threenthe ended November 25, 2012 and
November 27, 2011, the Company recognized costaafyzt sales of $1.7 million and $1.6 million, resfively, which have been included
cost of product sales in the accompanying Condeliti&tatements of Income, from the sale of produatshased from these parties. During
six months ended November 25, 2012 and Novembe2®7,, the Company recognized cost of product €d188.8 million and $2.9 million,
respectively, which have been included in costrofipct sales in the accompanying Consolidated i&&ies of Income, from the sale of
products purchased from these parties. The retatedunts payable of $425,000 and $776,000 aredadlin related party accounts payable in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheetsdewember 25, 2012 and May 27, 2012, respectively.

All related party transactions are monitored quértey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of Directors.
13. Stockholders’ Equity

During the three and six months ended Novembe2@82, the Company granted options to purchase @&B8res of common stock
and 6,666 of restricted stock unit awards.

As of November 25, 2012 the Company has resengthlion shares of Common Stock for future issi@nnder its current and
former equity plans.

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tlzedBaf Directors of the Company had approved ttaebdishment of a stock
repurchase plan which allows for the repurchasgadb $10 million of the Company’s Common Stockhe Company may repurchase its
common stock from time to time in open market pasas or in privately negotiated transactions. tirhimg and actual number of shares
repurchased is at the discretion of managemetieo€bompany and will depend on a variety of factmduding stock price, corporate and
regulatory requirements, market conditions, thatinet attractiveness of other capital deploymemiootunities and other corporate
priorities. The stock repurchase program doesbligate Landec to acquire any amount of its comstook and the program may be modified,
suspended or terminated at any time at the Compdisgretion without prior notice. During both tikeee and six months ended November 25,
2012, the Company did not purchase any shareseooptan market.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity (in thousands, except share amounts)

November 25,

2012
Common Stock Shares
Balance at May 27, 2012 25,644,58
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 128,10t
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares tauwter 11,24¢
Balance at November 25, 2012 25,783,93

Common Stock

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 26
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered —
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares textter —

Balance at November 25, 2012 $ 26

Additional Paid-in Capital

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 119,89:
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 651
Taxes paid by Company for RSUs vested (49
Stock-based compensation expense 671
Tax-benefit from stock based compensation expense 1,814
Balance at November 25, 2012 $ 122,98:
Retained Earnings

Balance at May 27, 201 $ 29,82:
Net income 13,27¢
Balance at November 25, 20 $ 43,10:

Non controlling Interest

Balance at May 27, 201 $ 1,81¢

Non controlling interest in net incon 15€

Distributions to non controlling intere (320)

Balance at November 25, 20 $ 1,65-
14. Business Segment Reporting

The Company manages its business operations thibuggh strategic business units. Based upon fhamation reported to the chief
operating decision maker, who is the Chief Exeau@fficer, the Company has the following reportad@gments : the Food Products
Technology segment, the Food Export segment andyh&ironan-based Biomaterials segment.

The Food Products Technology segment markets asid ppecialty packaged whole and fresh-cut vegesahht incorporate the
BreatheWay specialty packaging for the retail grpcelub store and food services industry. In &ddj the Food Products Technology segment
sells BreatheWay packaging to partners for non+adge products. The Food Export segment consistsvenues generated from the purchase
and sale of primarily whole commodity fruit and eégple products to Asia and domestically. The b&&ed Biomaterials segment sells prod
utilizing hyaluronan, a naturally occurring polysharide that is widely distributed in the extragkdt matrix of connective tissues in both
animals and humans, for medical use primarily en@phthalmic, Orthopedic and Veterinary markets.aAesult of the sale of Landec Ag to
INCOTEC and the termination of the Monsanto Agreeinire fiscal year 2012, the Company has eliminditedTechnology Licensing segment
and combined the remainder of that business it&ibrporate segment. As a result of this chammgeseégment information for the three and six
months ended November 27, 2011 has been reclassifimonform with the current year classificatidborporate licenses Landec’s patented
Intellicoat seed coatings to the farming industmg &censes the Company’s Intelimer polymers faspeal care products and other industrial
products. Corporate also includes general andrasirative expenses, non Food Products Technolodyhan HA-based Biomaterials interest
income and Company-wide income tax expenses. Begjnn fiscal year 2013, the Food Products Teabgylthe Food Export and the
Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials segments includegelsaior corporate services and tax sharing allddaten the Corporate segment. All of the
assets of the Company are located within the UrStatks of America. The Company’s internationldswere as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

November 25, November 27, November 25, November 27,
2012 2011 2012 2011




Taiwan

Indonesia

Canada

Japan

Belgium

All Other Countries

R AR - o

12.¢
7.4
6.1
2.8
1.€
7.4
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9.€
6.4
4.8
3.8
6.2
5.7

R AR - -

25.¢
13.5
12.2
5.8
4.€
12.5

R AR - -

19.C
13.€
9.6
6.2
8.1
9.7




Operations by segment consisted of the followinglousands):

Three Months Ended Nov. 2 Food Product HA-basec

2012 Technology Food Expor Biomaterials Corporate TOTAL

Net sales $ 78,59: $ 28,11¢ $ 7,73¢ $ 207 $ 114,65
International sale $ 595¢ $ 28,055 $ 422: $ — 3 38,236
Gross profit $ 13,10: $ 2,03 $ 3,11¢ $ 207 $ 18,45¢
Net income (loss $ 9,212 $ 86€ $ 33 % (1,509 $ 8,91:
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,172 $ 1 $ 59z $ 38 $ 1,80¢
Dividend Income $ 281 % — $ — — $ 281
Interest income $ 7% — $ 26 $ — $ 33
Interest expense $ 427 $ — 8 71 % — 3 49¢
Income tax expense $ 1,761 $ 28¢ $ 112 $ 75¢ $ 2,92(
Three Months Ended Nov. 27,

2011

Net sales $ 46,69 $ 2422¢ $ 9,23t $ 141 % 81,57(
International sale $ 4,64 $ 24,15( $ 788: $ $ 36,67
Gross profit $ 4531 $ 1,80: $ 526¢ $ 1,41 $ 13,01(
Net income (loss $ 2637 $ 1,09: $ 2,83t $ (3,22¢) $ 3,34(
Depreciation and amortization $ 771 $ 2 3 bt $ 4€ 3 1,37¢
Dividend Income $ 281 $ — 3 — % — 8 281
Interest income $ 22 3 — % 58 $ 1 $ 81
Interest expense $ — $ — % 165 $ — 3 162
Income tax expense $ — % — $ — % 2,04¢ $ 2,04¢
Six Months Ended Nov. 25, 20

Net sales $ 147,22: $ 53,47: $ 15,71: $ 31¢ $ 216,72¢
International sale $ 12,18 $ 53,36t $ 9,02¢ $ — $ 74,57
Gross profit $ 23,04 $ 3,377 $ 548: $ 31¢ $ 32,22
Net income (loss $ 15,12¢ $ 1,17t $ 26 $ (3,050 $ 13,27¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 2,41C $ 2 $ 1,178 $ 74 $ 3,661
Dividend Income $ 565 $ — — — % 562
Interest income $ 8 $ — % 5 $ — % 58
Interest expense $ 88z $ — % 157 % — 3 1,03¢
Income tax expense $ 3,73: % 391 $ 9 3 1,351 $ 5,48¢
Six Months Ended Nov. 27, 20

Net sales $ 90,05¢ $ 4558: $ 16,35¢ $ 287 % 154,87
International sale $ 9,711 $ 4546( $ 11,65( $ — $ 66,82:
Gross profit $ 10,59( $ 281t $ 797¢ $ 287 % 24,26(
Net income (loss $ 599t $ 1,39C $ 3,30C $ (5,539 $ 5,152
Depreciation and amortization $ 1551 $ 4 % 1,08: $ 91 $ 2,72¢
Dividend Income $ 56z $ — $ — $ — % 568
Interest income $ 3C % — % 10t $ 22 $ 157
Interest expense $ — $ — $ 34C $ — $ 34C
Income tax expense $ — $ — 3 — % 3,15¢ $ 3,15¢

During the six months ended November 25, 2012 amdkehber 27, 2011, sales to the Compangp five customers accounted for 3
and 42%, respectively, of revenues. The Compangustomer from the Food Products Technology segiiaccounting for 13% and 16% for
the six months ended November 25, 2012 and NoveRhez011, respectively. The Company expects thathe foreseeable future, a limited
number of customers may continue to account fagrfecant portion of its net revenues.

Iltem 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the unaudited consolidated financial statats and accompanying notes
included in Part I-ltem 1 of this Form 10-Q and ¢halited consolidated financial statements andrapaaying notes and Management's

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations included in Landec’s Annugh&t on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2012.
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Except for the historical information containeddier the matters discussed in this report are fati@oking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities ExchangeoA1934. These forward-looking statements imgalertain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materiallyrfrthose in the forward-looking statements. Po#&nks and uncertainties include, without
limitation, those mentioned in this Form 10-Q andse mentioned in Landec’s Annual Report on ForrK I0r the fiscal year ended May 27,
2012. Landec undertakes no obligation to updatewise any forward-looking statements in ordereftect events or circumstances that may
arise after the date of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

There have been no material changes to the Congpenity¢al accounting policies which are included aescribed in the Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2012 filed whie Securities and Exchange Commission on AuguXi R,.

The Company

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aidpmolymer products for food
and agricultural products, medical devices anchbegl partner applications that incorporate Lande&tented polymer technologies. The
Company has two proprietary polymer technologyfptats: 1) Intelimer® polymers, and 2) Hyaluron&AA”) biopolymers. The Company’s
polymer technologies, along with its customer retahips and trade names, are the foundation, &eg differentiating advantage, upon which
Landec has built its business.

Landec has three core businesses — Food Prodwtisdlegy, Food Export and HA-based Biomaterialaeheof which is described
below.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, operates our ¢F@oducts Technology business, combining Landedprietary food packaging
technology with the capabilities of a large natidioad supplier and value-added produce processoApio’s value-added operations, produce
is processed by trimming, washing, mixing, and pgakg into bags and trays that incorporate Land@@atheWay’ membrane
technology. The BreatheWay membrane increasetlgbelnd reduces shrink (waste) for retailers,dod certain products, eliminates the need
for ice during the distribution cycle and helpstsure that consumers receive fresh produce byntieethe product makes its way through the
supply chain. Apio also licenses the BreatheWalkirtelogy to ChiquitaBrands International, Inc. (“Chiquitafdr packaging and distribution
bananas and avocados and to Windset Farms for giagkaf greenhouse grown cucumbers, peppers anato@s

Apio also operates the Food Export bessrthrough its Cal Ex Trading Company (“Cal-ExThe Export business purchases and sells
whole fruit and vegetable products to predominaAsian markets.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Lifecorgevates our HAased Biomaterials business and is principally lwveain the development a
manufacture of products utilizing hyaluronan, aunaity occurring polysaccharide that is widely disfited in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and humansecait’s products are primarily sold to three mddiegments: (1) Ophthalmic, (2) Orthopedic
and (3) Veterinary. Lifecore also supplies hyahao to customers pursuing other medical applicatisnch as aesthetic surgery, medical device
coatings, tissue engineering and pharmaceutitafiscore leverages its fermentation process to rfearture premium, pharmaceutical-grade
hyaluronan, and its aseptic filling capabilitiesdliver HA finished goods to its customers. Ldeealso manufactures and sells its own HA-
based finished goods on a private label basis girdhird parties. Lifecore is recognized in thedimal segments as a premium supplier of
HA. Its name recognition allows Lifecore to acguirew customers and sell new products with a madasiteting and sales investment.

Landec also develops proprietary polymer techneagind applies them in a wide range of applicafioeisding seed coatings and
treatments, temperature indicators, controlledasdesystems, drug delivery, pressure sensitivesadiseand personal care products. These
applications are commercialized through partnesshiiph third parties resulting in licensing and atty revenues. For example, Air Products
and Chemicals, Inc. (“Air Products”) has an exaladicense to our Intelimer polymers for persoraakcproducts and Nitta Corporation (“Nitta”
licenses Landec’s proprietary pressure sensitinesides for use in the manufacture of electroniomanents by their customers.
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Landec was incorporated on October 31, 1986. Wgpteted our initial public offering in 1996 and dbommon Stock is listed on The
NASDAQ Global Select Market under the sym“LNDC.” Our principal executive offices are locatati3603 Haven Avenue, Menlo Park,
California 94025 and our telephone number is (&8 1650.

Description of Core Business

Landec participates in three core business segmé&otsd Products Technology, Food Export and Hyedan-based Biomaterials.

Landec Corporation

Proprietary Polymer Science Technology

Food Products
Technology

Food Export HA-based Biomaterials

Food Products Technology Business

The Company began marketing its proprietary Intefimased BreatheWay® membranes in 1996 for udesifrésh-cut produce
packaging market, historically one of the fastest\ng segments in the produce industry. Landpprietary BreatheWaypackaging
technology when combined with fresh-cut or wholedarce results in packaged produce with increaseld Iife and reduced shrink (waste)
without the need for ice during the distributiortiey The resulting products are referred to atuermdded” products. During the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2012, Apio shipped nearly sixteetianilcartons of produce to leading supermarkeilezta wholesalers, foodservice suppliers
and club stores throughout the United States aednationally, primarily in Canada.

There are four major distinguishing characterisbitApio that provide competitive advantages in Hoed Products Technology marl

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketesaltet of fresh-cut and whole value-added produtées focused
on selling products under its Eat Smart and Graenbrands and private label brands for its freshand whole value-added
products. As retail grocery chains, club storetfand service operators consolidate, Apio is yweBitioned as a single source of a
broad range of products.

Reduced Farming Risks: Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking owstép of farmland, and instead, contracts with gnevier
produce and selectively enters into joint ventuvide growers for produce. The year-round sour@ifiigroduce is a key component to
the fresh-cut and whole value-added processingbssi

Lower Cost Structure: Apio has strategically invested in the rapidly giogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. '8[i86,000
square foot value-added processing plant in GupdaldA, is automated with state-of-the-art veget@bcessing equipment. A large
majority of Apio’s value-added products utilize Afs proprietary BreatheWay packagingchnology. Apics strategy is to operate ¢
large central processing facility in one of the éstvcost growing regions in California, the Santil Valley, for the majority of its
non-green bean vegetable business, use its pagkaginnology for nationwide delivery and use itstEaoast facilities acquired with
the acquisition of GreenLine for green bean prdogsand to meet the “next day delivery” needs aftomers for its historical value-
added, fresh-cut products.

Expanded Product Line Using TechnologyApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagitgghnology, is introducing new value-
added products each year. These new productrggferange from various sizes of fresh-cut baggedumts, to vegetable trays, to
whole produce, to vegetable salads and snack p&xksng the last twelve months, Apio, excluding froducts acquired in the
acquisition of GreenLine, has introduced five neaduoicts.
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Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 800 advance the sales of BreatheWay packagingoéodly for shelf-life sensitive
vegetables and fruit. The Company’s specialty pgickpfor case liner products extends the shelfdffeertain produce commodities up to
50%. This shelf life extension can enable thézatilon of alternative distribution strategies airgefficiencies or reach new markets while
maintaining product quality to the end customer.

Apio Packaging’s first program has concentratetb@manas and was formally consummated when Apioeghteto an agreement to
supply Chiquita with its proprietary banana packgdgiechnology. This global agreement applies éarifrening, conservation and shelf-life
extension of bananas. In addition, Apio providégGita with ongoing research and development andgss technology support for the
BreatheWay membranes and bags, and technical sewjiport throughout the customer chain in ordessist in the development and market
acceptance of the technology.

Chiquita provides marketing, distribution and resaies support for Chiquita® bananas sold worléwidBreatheWay packaging. To
maintain the exclusive license, Chiquita must naeetrterly minimum purchase thresholds of BreatheWayana packages.

In fiscal year 2008, the Company expanded the fige BreatheWay technology to include avocadosraadgos under an expanded
licensing agreement with Chiquita. Commercial sateavocados packaged in Landec’s BreatheWay paakato the food service industry
began late in fiscal year 2008 and commerciallrstdés began in fiscal 2010. Chiquita is curgeatlaluating the future of its avocado program
due to sourcing and operational issues not retattite Company’s BreatheWay technology.

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wiwliged subsidiary of Monsanto
Company (“Monsanto”), to develop novel broccoli adiliflower products for the exclusive sale by &pi the North American market. These
novel products are packaged in Landec’s propricaeatheWay packaging and a commercial sales agrgenas entered into on June 12, 2012
and sales have recently started under MonsantoisfBee® brand to retail grocery and Club storeirtha

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieemgreement with Windset for Windset to utilize dad's proprietary breathable
packaging to extend the shelf life of greenhoussvgrcucumbers, peppers and tomatoes. Commeréal saWindset cucumbers and peppers
in BreatheWay packaging are projected to begiisiraf year 2013.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharehmse agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) witldgéin Pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 sergterped shares for $15 million and 201 commoneshéor $201 (the “Purchased Shares”).
The Company’s common shares represent a 20.1%éttierWindset. The non-voting senior preferrearss yield a cash dividend of 7.5%
annually. The dividend is payable within 90 daygath anniversary of the execution of the PurcAgseement. The Purchase Agreement
includes a put and call option, which can be esertion the sixth anniversary of the Purchase Ageaemhereby Apio can exercise the put to
sell its Purchased Shares to Windset, or Windseegarcise the call to purchase the Purchased Sfrare Apio, in either case, at a price equal
to 20.1% of the appreciation in the fair markeueabf Windset from the date of the Company’s inwestt through the put/call date, plus the
purchase price of the Purchased Shardader the terms of the arrangement with Windset@bmpany is entitled to designate one of five
members on the Board of Directors of Windset.

Food Export Business
Food Export revenues consist of revenues genefiaterthe purchase and sale of primarily whole comitydruit and vegetable

products primarily to Asia through Apio’s exportnepany, Cal-Ex. The Food Export business is a lellysisiness that realizes a margin on
average in the 5-8% range.
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Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business
Our HA-based Biomaterials business, operated throuwg Lifecore subsidiary, was acquired by Lande@pril 30, 2010.

Lifecore uses its fermentation process and asé&pticulation and filling expertise to be a leadethe development of HA-based
products for multiple applications and to take adage of non-HA device and drug opportunities whéskerage its expertise in manufacturing
and aseptic syringe filling capabilities. Elemeoitsifecore’s strategy include the following:

° Establish strategic relationships with market leesde Lifecore will continue to develop applications fwroducts with partners
who have strong marketing, sales and distributagmabilities to end-user markets. Through its gtn@putation and history of providing
premium HA products, Lifecore has been able toldistalongterm relationships with market leading companiehsas Alcon, Inc. (Alcon) ar
others in ophthalmology, and Musculoskeletal Tréarstg-oundation (MTF) and Novartis AG in orthopedic

° Expand medical applications for HADue to the growing knowledge of the unique cbigndstics of HA and the role it plays
in normal physiology, Lifecore continues to ideyti#nd pursue further uses for HA in other medigglliaations, such as wound care, aesthetic
surgery, adhesion prevention, drug delivery, dev@atings and pharmaceuticals. Further applicatioag involve expanding process
development activity and/or additional licensingexdhnology.

° License HA technology from third partie$n 2007, Lifecore entered into a world-wide exclgslicense and development
agreement with The Cleveland Clinic Foundationdeedop and commercialize Corgel™ Biohydrogel ugiatented HA-based cross-linking
technology that can be used for products in agsthetrthopedics, ophthalmology and other medieddi$. Lifecore has not yet developed any
commercial products for this technology.

° Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue caut aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitié$fecore continues to
evaluate providing contract services for opportasithat are suited for the capital and facilityestment related to aseptic filling equipment,
fermentation and purification.

° Maintain flexibility in product development and plprelationships. Lifecore’s vertically integrated development and
manufacturing capabilities allow it to establishaaiety of relationships with global corporate parss. Lifecore’s role in these relationships
extends from supplying HA raw materials to manufeiofy of aseptically-packaged, finished sterileduats to developing and manufacturing its
own proprietary products.

Other Non-Core Businesses
Seeds Business — Intellicoat Seed Coatings

Landec's Intellicoat seed coating applicationsdasigned to control seed germination timing, inseezrop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. These coatings areently available on male inbred corn used for ggediuction. In fiscal year 2000, Landec
Ag launched Pollinator PIu® coatings, which is a coating application used Bdssmpanies as a method for spreading pollin&tidgmcrease
yields and reduce risk in the production of hylsdééd corn. In 2012, Pollinator Plus was used @iyteieed companies on more than 20% o
seed corn production acres in the U.S. This basinas sold to INCOTEC Holding North America, IfENCOTEC”) on June 24, 2012 (see
Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Stateme

Nor-Seed Business

The Company believes its technologydmemercial potential in a wide range of industri@nsumer and medical applications beyond
those identified in our other segments. For examplr core patented technology, Intelimer matgrizdn be used to trigger release of catalysts,
insecticides or fragrances just by changing theptgature of the Intelimer materials or to activadéesives through controlled temperature
change. In order to exploit these opportunitieshave entered into and will enter into licensind aollaborative corporate agreements for
product development and/or distribution in cerfeetds. However, given the infrequency and unpsttiility of when the Company may enter
into any such licensing and research and developareangements, the Company is unable to disctedamancial expectations in advance of
entering into such arrangements.
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Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development strategyif@s on coatings, catalysts, resins, additivesadhédsives in the polymer materials
market. During the product development stageCiimpany identifies corporate partners to supperbtiigoing development and testing of
these products, with the ultimate goal of licengtmg applications at the appropriate time.

Intelimer Latent Catalyst Polymer Syste

Landec has developed latent catalysts useful enetihg pot-life, extending shelf life, reducing weaand improving thermoset cure
methods. Some of these latent catalysts are dlyrtezing distributed by Akzo-Nobel Chemicals Bpirsuant to our licensing agreement with

Air Products. The rights to develop and sell Larsiéatent catalysts and personal care technolagées licensed to Air Products in March
2006.

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatioagesly is focused on supplying Intelimer material;dustry leaders for use in
lotions and creams, as well as color cosmeticstitiks and hair care. The Company's partner, Adects, is currently shipping products to
L’Oreal, Mentholatum, Louis Widmer, Aris Cosmetasd other companies for use in lotions and crearhe. rights to develop and sell
Landec’s polymers for personal care products weemsed to Air Products in March 2006 along with kitent catalyst rights. The Company’s
Intelimer polymers are currently in over 50 perda@ae products worldwide.

Results of Operations

Revenuegin thousands):

Three Three
months months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
11/25/12 11/27/11 Change 11/25/12 11/27/11 Change

Apio Value Added $ 78,59 $ 46,69 68% $ 147,22 $ 90,05¢ 63%
Apio Export 28,11¢ 24,22¢ 16% 53,47: 45,58« 17%
Total Apio 106,70t 70,92: 50% 200,69° 135,64( 48%
Lifecore 7,73¢ 9,23¢ (16%) 15,71: 16,35¢ (4%)
Corporate 207 1,41 (85%) 31¢ 2,87¢ (89%)
Total Revenues $ 11465 $ 81,57( 41% $ 216,72¢ $  154,87: 4C0%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgéed from the sale of specialty packaged frestaod whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdggal in our proprietary packaging and sold udgeo’s Eat Smart and GreenLine brands
and various private labels. In addition, valueeticevenues include the revenues generated from@goling, LP, a vegetable cooling
operation in which Apio is the general partner vétB0% ownership position and from the sale of B@&/ay packaging to license partners.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenues fotthee and six months ended November 25, 2012 caupa the same periods of
last year was primarily due to the following fastofl) $24.3 million and $44.3 million, respectiyebf revenues from GreenLine which was
acquired on April 23, 2012 and (2) a 20% and 2¥4pectively, increase in unit volume sales to mgston-green bean customers resulting
primarily from expanded product offerings, gainedgitional distribution locations and growth in finesh-cut vegetable category. These
increases in revenue were partially offset by pobduix changes in retail grocery chains to lowecgut products from higher priced products.
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Apio Export

Apio export revenues consist of revenues genefatedthe purchase and sale of primarily whole comitydruit and vegetable
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revengeat to the sale price to third parties becautakés title to the product while in transit.

The increase in revenues in Apio’s export busifiesboth the three and six months ended Novembg2@B2 compared to the same
periods last year was due to a 3% increase invohitme sales due to a greater volume of fruit asgetables being available to export coupled
with favorable pricing for export products durigetfirst half of fiscal year 2013.

Lifecore

Lifecore principally generates revenue throughsile of products containing HA. Lifecore primyasklls products to customers in
three medical areas: (1) Ophthalmic, which reprieskapproximately 65% of Lifecore’s revenues iedisyear 2012, (2) Orthopedic, which
represented approximately 20% of Lifecore’s revarindiscal year 2012 and (3) Veterinary/Other.

The decrease in Lifecore’s revenues for the thnelesik months ended November 25, 2012 compardtktedme periods last year was

due to certain shipments which have historicallgrbghipped during the second quarter being delagddot scheduled for shipment until the
third quarter.

Corporate

Corporate revenues are generated from the licemgjregments with Air Products, Nitta and INCOTEC.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for the thicsiammonths ended November 25, 2012 comparecetedme periods of the prior

year was due to the termination of the MonsantceAgrent at the end of the second quarter of fiseal $012. The quarterly revenues and ¢
profit for Corporate from Monsanto had been $1.3%an per quarter prior to the termination.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Three Three
months months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
11/25/12 11/27/11 Change 11/25/12 11/27/11 Change

Apio Value Added $ 13,10: $ 4,531 18<% $ 23,04¢ $ 10,59( 11€%
Apio Export 2,03¢ 1,80 13% 3,37 2,81¢ 20%
Total Apio 15,13¢ 6,33¢ 13%% 26,42: 13,40¢ 97%
Lifecore 3,11¢ 5,26¢ (41%) 5,48: 7,97¢ (31%)
Corporate 207 1,41 (85%) 31¢ 2,87¢ (89%)
Total Gross Profit $ 18,45¢ $ 13,01( 42% $ 32,22. $ 24,26( 33%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnasi including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomgrnd name a few. Many of these factors inflleeacare interrelated with other factors. The
Company includes in cost of sales all of the cosdtsted to the sale of products in accordance Wigh generally accepted accounting
principles. These costs include the following: raaterials (including produce, casein, seeds aoklgggng), direct labor, overhead (including
indirect labor, depreciation, and facility relatmmkts) and shipping and shipping-related cost® félowing are the primary reasons for the

changes in gross profit for the three and six meetided November 25, 2012 compared to the sanmpdast year as outlined in the table
above.
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Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addedetable business for the three months endedriMose25, 2012 compared to the
same period last year was primarily due to the @8¥ease in revenues coupled with favorable prodocecing during the quarter which
resulted in lower produce costs compared to thergkquarter of last year.

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addedetable business for the six months ended Nogegt) 2012 compared to the
same period last year was primarily due to the G8¥ease in revenues coupled with favorable prodocecing during the first six month of
fiscal year 2013 which resulted in lower producsts@ompared to the same period of last year.

Apio Export

Apio’s export business is a buy/sell businessthalizes a gross margin in the 5-8% range. Toease in gross profit for Apio’s
export business during the three months ended Noeeb, 2012 compared to the same period lastwasdue to the 16% increase in
revenues. The 16% increase in revenues was higdetthe growth in gross profit because of an wrave product mix changes to lower

margin products which resulted in a lower grossgimeduring the second quarter of fiscal year 20f13.2% compared to a gross margin of 7
during the second quarter of fiscal year 2012.

The increase in gross profit for Apgéxport business during the six months ended Nbee2b, 2012 compared to the same perioc
year was due to the 17% increase in revenues.1T¥eincrease in revenues was lower than the growghoss profit because of favoral
product mix changes to higher margin products duttire first quarter of fiscal year 2013 which résdlin a higher gross margin during the first
six months of fiscal year 2013 of 6.3% compared gvoss margin of 6.2% during the first six mordhfiscal year 2012.

Lifecore

The decrease in gross profit during the three anchenths ended November 25, 2012 compared todime periods last year was due
to the decrease in revenues of $1.5 million an@ #dllion, respectively, as a result of certainpshénts which have historically been shipped
during the second quarter being delayed and netdsdéd for shipment until the third quarter.

Corporate

The decrease in Corporate gross profit for theetlred six months ended November 25, 2012 compartbe tsame periods of the prior
year was due to the termination of the MonsantceAgrent at the end of the second quarter of fiseal $012. The quarterly revenues and ¢
profit for Corporate from Monsanto had been $1.3%an per quarter prior to the termination.

Operating Expenseqin thousands):

Three Three
months months Six months  Six months
ended ended ended ended
11/25/12 11/27/11 Change 11/25/12 11/27/11 Change
Research and Devel opment:
Apio $ 274 % 242 13% $ 60z $ 51z 17%
Lifecore 1,21¢ 1,157 5% 2,367 2,24: 6%
Corporate 621 937 (34%) 1,34¢ 1,91« (3C%)
Total R&D $ 2,11 % 2,33 (1C%) $ 4317 $ 4,67( (8%)
Selling, General and Administrative
and other:
Apio $ 2,33t $ 3,68¢ (37%) $ 7,821 $ 7,03¢ 11%
Lifecore 1,12 1,11¢ 0% 2,39t 2,11: 13%
Corporate 1,79¢ 1,65¢ 8% 3,59: 3,35¢ 7%
Total S,G&A $ 525¢ $ 6,46¢ 19%) $ 13,80¢ $ 12,50¢ 10%
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Research and Development

Landec’s research and development consists priyrafrpproduct development and commercializatioriatites. Research and
development efforts at Apio are focused on the Gowijs proprietary BreatheWay membranes used fdtggang produce, with recent focus on
extending the shelf-life of sensitive vegetabled fnit. In the Lifecore business, the researath @evelopment efforts are focused on new
products and applications for Heased biomaterials. For Corporate, the researthievelopment efforts are focused on uses for mprigtary
Intelimer polymers outside of food and HA.

The decrease in research and development expemdée three and six months ended November 25, 26dpared to the same
periods last year was not significant.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (“S,G&A”) exges consist primarily of sales and marketing expeassociated with Landec’s
product sales and services, business developmpahses and staff and administrative expensesudedlin S,G&A for Apio is the $3.9 millic
reversal of the earn-out liability which was recmicas a reduction of operating expenses.

The decrease in S,G&A expenses for the three memitisd November 25, 2012 compared to the sameddasbyear was primarily
due to the $3.9 million reversal of the earn-caibility, partially offset by: (1) $1.6 million of §&A expenses at GreenLine which was acquired
on April 23, 2012, (2) a $1.0 million increase IB&A at Apio, excluding GreenLine, due to the anzation of the customer base intangible
acquired in the acquisition of GreenLine, an inseei salary and bonus expenses and additional satemarketing expenses associated with
the increase in revenues, and (3) a $135,000 iser@aCorporate due to increased accounting, @legal fees.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for the six montideed November 25, 2012 compared to the same plesbglear was primarily due
to: (1) $3.0 million of S,G&A expenses at GreenlLigich was acquired on April 23, 2012, (2) a $1i8iom increase in SG&A at Apio,
excluding GreenLine, due to the amortization of ¢chistomer base intangible acquired in the acnsitf GreenLine, an increase in salary and
bonus expenses and additional sales and markedramses associated with the increase in reverigles,$282,000 increase at Lifecore due to
the timing of the recognition of certain S,G&A exges within the fiscal year and (4) a $234,000ciase at Corporate due to increased
accounting, tax and legal fees. These increases pegtially offset by the $3.9 million reversaltbe earn-out liability.

Other (in thousands):

Three Three
months months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
11/25/12 11/27/11 Change 11/25/12 11/27/11 Change
Dividend Income $ 281 $ 281 NM  $ 562 $ 562 N/M
I nterest I ncome $ 33 % 81 (6C%) $ 58 $ 157 (63%)
I nterest Expense $ (49¢) $ (163) 20€% $ (1,039 $ (340 206%
Other Income (Exp) $ 98: $ 1,07¢ (9%) $ 5,241 % 1,08¢ 382%
Income Taxes $ (2,920 $ (2,049 43% $ (5,489 $ (3,159 74%
Non contralling Int. $ (59 $ (98) (4C%) $ (15€) $ (239) (35%)

Dividend Income

Dividend income is derived from the dividends aecton our $15 million preferred stock investmenMimdset which yields a cash
dividend of 7.5% annually. There was no changgividend income for the three and six months eridedember 25, 2012 compared to the
same periods last year.
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Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the three enaienths ended November 25, 2012 compared toaime periods last year was
primarily due to lower cash balances reflecting usg of cash to buyback shares of the Company’srmnstock during fiscal year 2012 and to
purchase GreenLine.

Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense during the thrdesix months ended November 25, 2012 compardtkteame periods last year was
due to interest on the debt incurred in the actioisdf GreenLine. This increase was partiallyseffby decreases in interest expenses at Lif
due to paying down its debt by $1.8 million sinle beginning of fiscal year 2012.

Other Income (Expense)

The decrease in other income for the three momttisdeNovember 25, 2012 compared to the same pesogear is due to an 11%
decrease in the fair market value of our Windsetétment. The increase in other income for therginths ended November 25, 2012
compared to the same period last year is due t3arfillion increase in the fair market value of 8\dindset investment which is due to the
timing of the recording of the increase this yeamnpared to last year when the majority of the figear 2012 increase occurred in the
Company'’s third fiscal quarter.

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense for the thnel six months ended November 25, 2012 is daeliy% and 121% increase,
respectively, in net income before taxes comparatle same periods last year. The effective texfoa the three and six months ended
November 25, 2012 was 25% and 29% respectivelypeaosd to 38% for the same periods last y

Non controlling Interest
The non controlling interest consists of the lirdifgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofcA@ooling, LP.

The change in the non controlling interest forttivee and six months ended November 25, 2012 cadparthe same periods last year
was not significant.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of November 25, 2012, the Company had cash asid equivalents of $4.9 million, a net decreaskl@t3 million from $22.2
million at May 27, 2012.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $2.4 million of cash from opegatictivities during the six months ended Novemiier2B12 compared to using
$742,000 in operating activities for the six morghsled November 27, 2011. The primary sourcessti from operating activities during the
six months ended November 25, 2012 were from (feging $13.4 million of net income, (2) $3.7 ioitl of depreciation and amortization ¢
(3) a $3.0 million net increase in deferred takilifies. The primary reduction of cash from op#rg activities was the reversal of the $3.9
million earn-out liability which increased net imoe by the same amount but was a non-cash item aatliacrease of $9.4 million in working
capital, excluding the decrease in income taxesivable which is offset by the tax benefit fromcktdoased compensation.

The primary factors which increased working capitaiing the first quarter of fiscal year 2013 wéagan $8.6 million increase in
receivables primarily due to the timing of receigt#\pio and that revenues in November this yeaeya5.2 million higher than November of
last year, (b) a $1.8 million decrease in accrigdalities primarily from paying bonuses earnedigtal year 2012 during the first quarter of
fiscal year 2013 and (c) a $2.4 million increaseirentories at Apio as a result of building invamytfor a projected increase in
revenues. Working capital decreased during tisé $ix months of fiscal year 2013 because of a 88ll®n increase in accounts payable due to
the addition of GreenLine related payables paytiafifset by a decrease in payables at Lifecoretduke timing of payments.
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Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the sonthis ended November 25, 2012 was $5.2 million @egto net cash provided by
investing activities of $846,000 for the same pettast year. The primary uses of cash in invesittgyities during the six months ended
November 25, 2012 were for the purchase of $3.Bamibf equipment primarily to support the growthtloe Apio valu-added and Lifecore
businesses, and from the net purchase of $2.omitli marketable securities.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the siomis ended November 25, 2012 was $14.5 millionpared to $4.0 million for the
same period last year. The net cash used in fingretivities during the first six months of fisg@ar 2013 was primarily due to the $10 mill
earn out payment from the Lifecore acquisition7$#8illion of which was recorded as a contingertiility at the time of the acquisition and is
therefore classified as a financing activity, a@d3million of payments on the Company’s lines i&dit and long-term debt.

Capital Expenditures

During the six months ended November 25, 2012, eaqmirchased equipment to support the growth oAfiie value-added and
Lifecore businesses. These expenditures repessém majority of the $3.3 million of capital expgtures.

Debt

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratiistrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wassumed by Landec in the
acquisition of Lifecore. The IRBs are collateratizby a bank letter of credit which is secured figsh mortgage on the Lifecore facility in
Chaska, Minnesota. In addition, Lifecore paysanual remarketing fee equal to 0.125% and an aiettex of credit fee of 0.75%.

On April 23, 2012 in connection with the acquigitiof GreenLine, Apio entered into three loan agre@mwith General Electric
Capital Corporation and/or its affiliates (“GE Capl), (collectively the “Apio Loan Agreements”):

1) A five-year, $25.0 million asset-based workaapital revolving line of credit, with an intereate of LIBOR plus 2%, with availability
based on the monthly combination of the eligiblecamts receivable and inventory balances of Apbitmsubsidiaries. Apio’s
revolving line of credit has an unused fee of 0% ¢ter annum. At November 25, 2012, Apio had $7lbam outstanding under its
revolving line of credit.

2) A $12.7 million capital equipment loan whichtnas in seven years payable in monthly principal iaterest payments of $175,356
with interest based on a fixed rate of 4.39% pauan

3) A $19.1 million real estate loan, $1.2 milliohwhich is due on April 23, 2013 and the remainghaturing in ten years. The real estate
loan has a fifteen year amortization period dueadmthly principal and interest payments of $141,@@h interest based on a fixed rate
of 4.02% per annum. The principal balance remaimit the end of the ten year term is due in omplaum on May 1, 2022.

The obligations of Apio and its subsidiaries agsirom the Apio Loan Agreements are secured bysl@mall of the property of Apio
and its subsidiaries. The Apio Loan Agreementgaiarcustomary events of default under which oliées could be accelerated or
increased. Landec is guaranteeing all obligatadrspio and its subsidiaries to GE Capital under litans described in clauses (2) and (3) above
and has pledged its equity interest in Apio asatethl under the loan described in (1) above. Ajie Loan Agreements contain customary
covenants, such as limitations on the ability foilftur indebtedness or grant liens or negativeges on Apio’s assets; (2) make loans or other
investments; (3) pay dividends or repurchase stoakher securities; (4) sell assets; (5) engagedrgers; (6) enter into sale and leaseback
transactions; (7) adopt certain benefit plans; @ydnake changes in Apio’s corporate structureaddition, Apio must maintain a minimum
fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0. Ap#svin compliance with all financial covenants adlofember 25, 2012.
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On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or ffdiates (“BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

@ A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Cred@réement”) which includes (a) a one-year, $8.0ionlhsset-based working capital
revolving line of credit, with an interest rateldBOR plus 1.85%, with availability based on themttdy combination of Lifecore’s
eligible accounts receivable and inventory balarfaeailability was $7.3 million at November 25, 29land with no unused fee (as of
November 25, 2012, no amounts were outstandingruhddine of credit) and (b) a $12.0 million teloan which matures in four yee
due in monthly payments of $250,000 with interestgble monthly based on a variable interest ratdBOR plus 2% (the “Term
Loan”).

2 A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which@BMarris caused its affiliate, Bank of Montrealjgsue an irrevocable letter of
credit in the amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter @redit”) which is securing the IRBs described a0

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Losgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgf Lifecore. The Lifecore
Loan Agreements contain customary covenants, ssiimdations on the ability to (1) incur indebtexhs or grant liens or negative pledges on
Lifecore’s assets; (2) make loans or other invests)€3) pay dividends or repurchase stock or atbeurities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in
mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaseback transag(7) adopt certain benefit plans; and (8) mai@nges in Lifecore’s corporate structure. In
addition, under the Credit Agreement, Lifecore nmaatntain (a) a minimum fixed charge coverage rafi.10 to 1.0 and a minimum quick
ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which must be s#&idfas of the end of each fiscal quarter commenwitigthe fiscal quarter ending August 26,
2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth of $29,000, measured as of May 28, 2013, and as ofrith@keach fiscal year
thereafter. Lifecore was in compliance with atldincial covenants as of November 25, 2012.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formmedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit
(which replaces a letter of credit previously pdad by Wells Fargo) provides liquidity and credipport for the IRBs.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yatgrest rate swap agreement under the credit agreemith Wells Fargo, which
expires on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swag designated as a cash flow hedge of futureeisttpayments of LIBOR and had a notional
amount of $20 million. As a result of the intereste swap transaction, the Company fixed for aear period the interest rate at 4.24% subject
to market based interest rate risk on $20 millibbarowings under the credit agreement with WE#sgo. The Company’s obligations under
the interest rate swap transaction as to the stdegayments were guaranteed and secured on thelssis as is its obligations under the cr
agreement with Wells Fargo at the time the agreémas consummated. As mentioned in Note 10, @obering into the new Term Loan with
BMO Harris, the Company used the proceeds fromitizat to pay off the Wells Fargo credit facilitfhe swap with Wells Fargo was not
terminated upon the extinguishment of the debt Witils Fargo. As a result of extinguishing thetdeith Wells Fargo as of May 23, 2012, the
swap was no longer an effective hedge and thergfoedair value of the swap at the time the ded @xtinguished of $347,000 was reversed
from other comprehensive income and recorded iaratkpense during fiscal year 2012. The fair valune swap arrangement as of Noven
25, 2012 and May 27, 2012 was $248,000 and $34/r86pectively, and is included in other accruedtilities in the accompanying balance
sheet. The change in the fair value of the swa§b@f000 and $99,000, respectively, for the threksix months ended November 25, 2012 is
recorded in other income in the accompanying Cathasigld Statements of Income.

Landec believes that its cash from operations,galeith existing cash, cash equivalents and marketdrurities will be sufficient to
finance its operational and capital requirementsafdeast the next twelve months.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There have been no material changes to the Congpauayket risk during the first six months of fisgahr 2012.
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Iltem 4.

Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Quirteeport on Form 1@ (the Evaluation Date), we carried out an evatunatiinder th
supervision and with the participation of our magragnt, including our Chief Executive Officer andéHrinancial Officer, regarding
the effectiveness of the design and operation fimelosure controls and procedures (as definétlile 13a-15(e) promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendexe®upon that evaluation, our Chief Executived®@ffand Chief Financial Officer
have concluded, as of the end of the period coeyetiis Quarterly Report, that our disclosure ooistand procedures were not
effective as a result of the identified materiabkeess in internal control over financial reportitige nature of which is summarized
below.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combimatf deficiencies, in internal control over fin@laeporting, such that there i
reasonable possibility that a material misstatensérthe Company annual or interim financial statements will net frevented «
detected on a timely basis.

The Company did not have effective controls to ievassurance as to the appropriate applicatiaecaiunting methods with respec
determining the fair value of its investment inanfpublic company for which it has elected the fa@ilue option. The company
misapplied the guidance under FASB ASC 820 - Falu¥ Measurement, by incorrectly calculating thevalue of the investment.

To remediate the material weakness described anwyenhance our internal control over financiabrépg, management has
developed and initiated a plan to implement thio¥ahg changes:

Obtain an independent appraisal at least annuatlyndnen there has been a significant change imgsgens of the Company’s
investment(s) in non-public company(ies) — fairmeaincluding a discounted net present value ofrthestment as of the quarter being
reported.

Management will validate the significant assumpionthe independent appraiser’s model and vehidy the discounted net present
value as of the quarter being reported is reasenabl

At quarter ends, where an independent appraisexttehis not obtained, management will validate apdate, as necessary, the
significant assumptions of that independent appraigjualified model and calculate a discountedonesent value as of the quarter
being reported.

Management believes that these measures, wherirhiglgmented, will remediate the material weakrdesscribed above. The Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors and manageméhtontinue to monitor the implementation of teegmedial measures and the
effectiveness of our internal controls and procedun an ongoing basis.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

There were no changes in our internal controls Gimancial reporting during the fiscal quarter edidéovember 25, 2012 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenilly affect, our internal controls over finaatieporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

Iltem 1.

Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company is npagy to any legal proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Iltem 2.

Iltem 3.

Item 4.

Item 5.

Except as set forth below, there have been nofiignt changes to the Company's risk factors whighincluded and described in the
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 27, 201&dfiwith the Securities and Exchange CommissioAwgust 8, 2012.

Lapses in disclosure controls and procedures or iatnal control over financial reporting could materially and adversely affect
the Company’s operations, profitability or reputation.

We are committed to maintaining high standardsitafrhal control over financial reporting and distice controls and procedures.
Nevertheless, lapses or deficiencies in disclosargrols and procedures or in our internal contkar financial reporting may occur
from time to time. On January 2, 2013, we repotted our audit committee reached a determinatioedtate our previously-filed
interim financial statements for the first fiscalagter of 2013 and that our previously-filed intefinancial statements for the first fiscal
quarter of 2013 should not be relied upon. We sdported management’s determination that a mategakness existed in our internal
control over financial reporting at August 26, 2022 a result of the material weakness, manageaisotconcluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were not effective at Aug6s2012.
There can be no assurance that our disclosureot®aind procedures will be effective in the futdhat we will effectively remediate
our current material weakness, or that a matergkmess or significant deficiency in internal cohtiver financial reporting will not
again exist. Any such lapses or deficiencies materigdly and adversely affect our business andltesfi operations or financial
condition, restrict our ability to access the calpibarkets, require us to expend significant resesito correct the lapses or deficiencies,
expose us to regulatory or legal proceedings, fmnmmeputation, or otherwise cause a decline iestor confidence.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitiemnd Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity seesriti shares repurchased by the Company durirfgstiad quarter ended on Noveml
25, 2012.

Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.

Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable

Other Information

None.
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Iltem 6. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Title:
31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to secti302of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2+  CFO Certification pursuant to secti302of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1+  CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2+  CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS* XBRL Instance

101.SCH’XBRL Taxonomy Extension Scher

101.CAL*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculatic

101.DEF*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitio

101.LAB*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labe

101.PRE’XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentati

+  Filed herewith.
* XBRL information is furnished and not filed orpart of a registration statement or prospectuptioposes of sections 11 or 12 of the

Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemedladtfbr purposes of section 18 of the Securitigstange Act of 1934, as amended,
and otherwise is not subject to liability undershesections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causedRéport to be signed on its bel
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinne
Gregory S. Skini
Vice President, Finance and Chief Finan
Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Date: January 4, 2013
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Exhibit 31.]
CERTIFICATION

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly remor Form 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quartexport does not contain any untrue statementodterial fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansfatements, and other financial information inelich this quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoiftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this quarterly
report;

4. The registrant's other certifyinfjadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaming disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15¢e)1) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(@) designed such disclestantrols and procedures , or caused such diselasuatrols and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidatibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this quarterly report is being prepared

(b) designed such inteewitrol over financial reporting, or caused sudbrimal control over financial reporting to be desd
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadbepted accounting principles;

() evaluated the effeatiess of the registrant's disclosure controls andgutures and presented in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures , as of the end of¢éhiegh covered by this quarterly repbesed ol
such evaluation, and

(d) disclosed in this qealst report any change in the registrant’s intecmadtrol over financial reporting that occurredidgrthe
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual M@pleat has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifyindjadr and | have disclosed, based on our most temeuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaamimittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficicies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal control ofreancial reporting whicl
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the ttegig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whethemot material, that involves management or otherleyees who have a significant role in the regidtsan
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 4, 2013

[s] Gary T. Steele
Gary T. Steele

Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.:
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly remor Form 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quartexport does not contain any untrue statementodterial fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansfatements, and other financial information inelich this quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoiftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this quarterly
report;

4. The registrant's other certifyinfjadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaming disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15¢e)1) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(@) designed such disclestantrols and procedures , or caused such diselasuatrols and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidatibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this quarterly report is being prepared

(b) designed such inteewitrol over financial reporting, or caused sudbrimal control over financial reporting to be desd
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles ;

() evaluated the effeatiess of the registrant's disclosure controls andgutures and presented in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures , as of the end of¢éhiegh covered by this quarterly repbesed ol
such evaluation ; and

(d) disclosed in this qealst report any change in the registrant’s intecmadtrol over financial reporting that occurredidgrthe
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual M@pleat has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifyindjadr and | have disclosed, based on our most temeuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaamimittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficicies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal control ofreancial reporting whicl
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the ttegig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whethemot material, that involves management or otherleyees who have a significant role in the regidtsan
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 4, 2013
/sl Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinner
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landewridration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending November 25,
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, GarnSteele, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 ofdheaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejuérements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsriExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retgairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: January 4, 2013

/sl Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steels
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

*

The foregoing certification is being furnishsolely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbandeyOXct of 2002 (subsections (a)

and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18iteéthStates Code) and is not being filed as patti@fForm 10-Q or as a
separate disclosure document.

-40 -



Exhibit 32.z

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landexridration (the “Company”) on Form X@{or the period ending November 25, 2012 as-
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S. Skinnédce President of Finance and
Adminstration and Chief Financial Officer of ther@pany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, asptat pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejuérements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsriExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retgdairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: January 4, 20 13

/sl Gregory S. Skinne

Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic

(Principal Accounting Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnighsolely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbandeyOxct of 2002 (subsections (a)
and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18itethStates Code) and is not being filed as pattt@form 10-Q or as a

separate disclosure document.

-41-



